
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

April 04, 2023 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  April  3, 2023 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

PERSONNEL 

1. Discussion and approval to authorize advertisement for the part-time Code Enforcement Officer 

position.  The position will fall under the jurisdiction of the Tax and Permit Department. 

2. To ratify the appointment of Police Department personnel. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. State Representative Jonathan Goudeau to introduce himself since he is new to the district he serves. 

2. Abbeville Police Officer Jeremy Deville to discuss the upcoming fundraiser for St. Jude. 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the minutes from the March 7, 2023 and March 21, 2023 Committee meetings, the 

February 27, 2023 special City Council meeting and the regular City Council meetings held on March 

7, 2023 and March 21, 2023. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion and possible action pertaining to hardening our schools - Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

2. Public hearing to receive comments from the public regarding a proposed ordinance to change the 

curfew for those under the age of 18. 

3. To accept the recommendation of the Ordinance Committee from their meeting held on March 21, 

2023 to adopt an ordinance to change the curfew for those under the age of 18 years. 

4. Discussion and possible action regarding the rental of the A. A. Comeaux Recreation Center. 

5. To authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement of understanding between the City of Abbeville, Erin 

Benoit, representing The Brown Bag, and Coby Bengtson, representing B & B Daiquiris, pertaining to 

the leasing of City property located at 1103 Veterans Memorial Drive. 

6. To authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement between the City of Abbeville, the 

Vermilion Parish Police Jury and the Vermilion Parish School Board for a street overlay of Eaton Drive 

from Sylvester to Regina Street. 

7. To ratify the purchase and installation of a pump at the Wastewater Treatment Plant at a cost of 

$17,697.90. 

8. To approve payment of partial payment estimate number 6 in the amount of $32,775.00 payable to 

Shaw Construction Services, LLC relative to the FY 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation 

project. 

9. To adopt a resolution recognizing the importance of the Community Development Block Grant 

Program and designating the week of April 10, 2023 through April 14, 2023 as National Community 

Development Week. 

10. To approve the quote in the amount of $7,683.48 from Versalift to repair Unit #602, a bucket truck in 

the Electrical Department. 

1



11. To approve the quotation in the amount of $6,600.00 from Kaptel to provide wifi to A. A. Comeaux 

Park. 

12. Discussion with the property owner of 509 S. Young Street pertaining to the dilapidated structure and 

to authorize action if needed. 

13. Discussion with the property owner of 909 S. Lyman pertaining to the structure in a dilapidated 

condition and to authorize action if needed. 

14. Discussion with the property owner of the master tract located at 1841 Graceland, which includes the 

addresses of 1847 Graceland, 1855 Graceland, 1857 Graceland and 1859 Graceland, pertaining to 

the dilapidated structure, junk, garbage, rubbish, overgrown and fallen trees and long grass and to 

authorize action if needed. 

15. To condemn the structure located at 1106 Vernon Street and to move forward with the demolition 

process.  The owner attended a hearing on October 4, 2022 and was given more time but has not 

complied. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

5.        Mayor 

6.        Police Chief 

7.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Roslyn White's office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



                                                                                                                                                           April 3, 2023 

 

  Code Enforcement Officer  

 
NATURE OF WORK 
 

The Code Enforcement Officer conducts inspections and investigates complaints for compliance
with City codes and ordinances.  The Officer seeks to obtain compliance with City codes 

through citations or warning notices while assuring due process to violators.  The position 

is required to prepare letter and written documentation necessary to take violators to  

hearings for enforcement action.  

 
This position reports directly to the Director of Revenue, Regulatory Codes, and Permits.   

Work is performed under general supervision which requires initiative, independent judgment, 

and organizational skills.  The Code Enforcement Officer must deal effectively with the public,  

property owners and contractors to obtain compliance. 
 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK   This position is responsible for performing technical and 

administrative duties involving the enforcement of county codes and ordinances. The work 

consists of related code enforcement duties. The purpose of this position is to enforce city codes 
and ordinances. Successful performance contributes to the safety and welfare of citizens. 

 

• Administers and enforces the City’s ordinances and actively manages, 

inspects, and monitors areas within the City. 

• Processes violations utilizing tracking software. 

• Investigates complaints regarding code violations pertaining to building, housing, 

zoning, tree, sign, billboards, litter, nuisance, and other City codes by conducting 

field investigations and property research.   

• Regularly attends and provides testimony before the City Council and City Court 

regarding code violations.     

• Provides violators of City codes with citations or notice of violation and  
communicates to the violator due process procedures to comply with City codes.    

• Routinely patrols designated areas for potential code violations,  

• Maintains records regarding code violations via a computer‐aided tracking 

 system, and documents files until compliance is obtained. 

• Prepares letters for notice of violation and notice of hearing, clearly identifying  

code violations and appropriate corrective action.   

• Conducts follow‐up inspections to previously identified code violations to ensure 

that code compliance is maintained.    

• Makes recommendations on ordinance adjustments to improve compliance and 

enforcement. 

 
NECESSARY KNOWLEDGE, ABILITIES, AND SKILLS 

• Basic codes, ordinances, laws and regulations pertaining to building and zoning 

• compliance, including sections of the City of Abbeville penal codes, vehicle codes and 
health and safety codes. 

• Investigative practices and principles. 

• Basic principles and procedures of record keeping. 

• Modern office procedures and methods including computers. 

• Effective oral and written communication methods. 

• Proficient computer skills and Microsoft Office suite of programs. 

• Negotiation and conflict resolution techniques. 

• City services and organizational structure as they relate to code compliance. 

• Legal actions applicable to code enforcement compliance. 
 

3



                                                                                                                                                           April 3, 2023 

 

 

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS  
.  

High school diploma or GED equivalent required.  Two years’ experience related to inspection, 

law enforcement, building inspection, land use, public administration, or a related field, or any 
equivalent combination of education and experience. 

 

Experience using computer software and applications. Good written and verbal communication 

skills, and excellent public relations skills are a necessity.  Demonstrated knowledge and 

experience with City of Abbeville Code of Ordinances, including building codes, blighted 
property regulations and procedures. Possession of a Louisiana driver’s license as required by 

the Department of Public Safety, prior to appointment.  Must be a registered voter. 

 

 
NECESSARY SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS  

• Some knowledge of code enforcement principles, practices, and methods as 

applicable to a municipal setting; working knowledge of applicable laws, standards 

and regulations relating to various land use, nuisance and public safety codes; 

working knowledge of inspection techniques; 

• Skill in operating the listed tools and equipment; 

• Ability to prepare, organize and maintain inspection field data, reports and 

systems; Ability to analyze complex situations, problems and data, and use sound 

judgment in drawing conclusions and making decisions; Ability to comprehend and 

articulate complex facts and relationships in detail and to summarize and write 

clearly, concisely and legibly, and to testify in court in an objective, concise, and 

professional manner; Ability to produce or obtain reports, graphs, charts, 

photographs or the evidence or exhibits; Ability to communicate effectively orally 

and in writing; Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships 

with citizens, employees, supervisors and the general public; Ability to follow 

verbal and written instructions; Ability to handle stressful situations and 

effectively deal with difficult or angry people. 

4



5



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

February 27, 2023 

 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on February 27, 2023 

at 3:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., Terry 

Broussard, Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy   

 

Member Absent: None 

 

 

Also, Present:   Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

Ruben “Ben” Rivera and Amy Nunez, Insurance agents 

Rani Lege, Administrative Assistant to the Mayor 

Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

     

Mayor White called the special City Council meeting to order and requested a roll call.  Mayor 

White asked Councilwoman Terry Broussard to lead those assembled in prayer and she asked 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. to lead those assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance.  She asked 

if there were any comments on any agenda item prior to action.  There were none. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to ratify the 

appointment of Emmanuel Thomas to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville Police 

Department pending successful completion of all post-offer assessments.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

insurance package renewal as offered by Risk Management, Inc. in the amount of $216,562.54, 

for commercial general liability coverage, law enforcement officer coverage, errors and 

omissions coverage and automobile liability coverage.  The policy year begins March 1, 2023 and 

ends at midnight on February 29, 2024 and is a decrease in premium of $6,243.02 from the 

previous policy year.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

insurance package renewal as offered by Thomson, Smith and Leach in the amount of 

$372,798.22 for property coverage, equipment and auto package coverage, airport general 

liability coverage and boiler and machinery coverage.  The policy year begins March 1, 2023 and 

ends at midnight on February 29, 2024.  The premium is an increase of $150,083.72 from the 

previous policy year which is attributable to the property insurance market issues.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to authorize the 

Mayor to submit a letter to Congressman Clay Higgins to support the endeavor to light Highway 

167.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

6



2 
 

-05 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize 

advertisement for bids for the Love Louisiana Outdoors Program for the new fishing pier and 

wharf construction for LaFitte Drive-In Park.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

recommendation from the Abbeville Planning and Zoning Commission to ratify the lot line 

adjustment of 2 lots, Lot 67A and 66 A, on South Shireview Circle.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

7



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

March 7, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on March 7, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., 
    Terry Broussard, and Tony Hardy 

 
Members Absent: Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Stewart Head, Electrical Department Superintendent 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Charlene Becket, Main Street Manager 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

   Gene Sellers, Engineer 

  Kim Touchet, Engineer 

  Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

 Charles Dill, Abbeville Planning Commission 

  Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

  Pastor B. K. Stevens 

   Le’Asia Brown, 2023 Gospel Talent Search winner 

  Tammy Broussard, Eaton Park Elementary 

     

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  She then asked 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked 

Le’Asia Brown to sing the Star-Spangled Banner in lieu of the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

annual 2% pay increase for the unclassified position of Main Street Manager.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to ratify the 

appointment of Paul Broussard to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville Police 

Department pending successful completion of all post-offer assessments.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Mayor White and the City Council honored Ms. Le’Asia Brown who was recently chosen as one of 

the winners of the 2023 Gospel Talen Search. 

 

Mayor White and the City Council honored Ms. Tammy Broussard from Eaton Park Elementary 

and presented a proclamation for Youth Art Month. 

 

Ms. Victoria Bourque was on the agenda to provide an update on VEDA but she was not at the 

8



meeting because she was ill. 

 

-03 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the minutes 

from the Committee meetings held on December 20, 2022, January 3, 2023 and February 7, 2023, 

the special City Council meetings held on January 3, 2023 and January 17, 2023 and the regular 

City Council meetings held on December 20, 2022, January 3, 2023, January 17, 2023 and 

February 7, 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to ratify bills paid in 

the month of February 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

budget to actual report for January 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to enter into a 

public hearing to receive comments on the following ordinances:  1. An ordinance to repeal and 

re-enact the liquor permit ordinance, Chapter 3, 2.  An ordinance to adopt Article VII-Use of golf 

carts and slow moving vehicles into Chapter 12, 3.  An ordinance to amend Section 15.5-29 (c), 

Location of trash containers, to designate the City as the governing authority that determines 

variances regarding household garbage containers within the city limits instead of the Vermilion 

Parish Police Jury.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White and Mr. Bart Broussard briefly described the specifics of each ordinance. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to reconvene the 

regular meeting from public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

T. Broussard/Hardy 

Ordinance 23-02 

 

An ordinance to repeal and re-enact Chapter 3- Alcohol, Beverage, sections 3-1 through 3-11. 

 

The motion was to put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4 (Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT 1 (Touchet) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted. 

 

T. Broussard/Hardy 

Ordinance 23-03 

 

An ordinance to adopt Article VII, Chapter 12, Section 12-108, Use of golf carts and slow-moving 

vehicles. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4 (Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1 (Touchet) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted. 

9



T. Broussard/Hardy 

Ordinance 23-04 

 

An ordinance to amend Section 15.5-29 (c), Location of trash containers. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4 (Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1 (Touchet) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted. 

 

B. Broussard/T. Broussard 

Resolution R23-05 

 

A resolution in support of legislation to create the Acadiana Regional Juvenile Justice District 

comprised of various parishes in or near the Acadiana Region. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the quote 

from S & V Services in the amount of $5,750.00 to replace two auto switchover vacuum 

regulators, two mounting kit assemblies with heater and to calibrate the chlorine system at the 

Water Treatment Plant.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

quotation from Frank Harrison Paving in the amount of $13,466.00 for a partial overlay of the 

intersection of E. Vermilion and N. St. Valerie.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to ratify the purchase 

of a regulator at a cost of $34,000.00 for Pete Noel Electrical Substation.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve plan change 

order number 3 relative to the Airport Rehabilitation of the T-Hangar Taxilanes and Apron Areas 

Project.  The change order decreases the contract amount by $94,16.79 and adjusts the contract 

time.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve payment of 

partial payment number 1 relative to the Airport Rehabilitation of the T-Hangar Taxilanes and 

Apron Areas Project, in the amount of $17,809.40 payable to Glenn Lege Construction, LLC.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hardy/T. Broussard 

Resolution R23-06 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the act of acceptance for the Airport Rehabilitation 

of the T-Hangar Taxilanes and Apron Areas Project. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

10



-13 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve payment 

of partial payment number 5 in the amount of $205,429.01 payable to Shaw Construction 

Services, LLC relative to the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation Project.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

change order number 1 relative to the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation Project.  The change 

order adjusts contract time by 48 days due to inclement weather days.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-15 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve payment 

of partial payment estimate number 2 in the amount of $95,301.59 payable to Southern 

Constructors, LLC relative to the Downtown Abbeville Streetscaping Project.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

500 Second Street – Ms. Genie Summers appeared to represent the property to discuss the 

repairing or removal of the front porch roof structure and the removal of the rear walkaway.  The 

family has two potential buyers of the property.  She requested 30 days to remove or repair the 

front porch roof structure and to remove the rear walkway.   

 

-16 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to grant the 

property owner of 500 Second Street 30 days to repair or remove the front porch roof structure 

and to remove the rear walkway.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

637 Sweet Lane – Ms. Brenda Elliott appeared to represent the property to discuss the 

condemnation of the two structures and the camper.  She was cleaning the property and her 

brother would be purchasing the property.  It is their intention to demolish the structures and 

camper. 

 

-17 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to grant the property 

owner of 637 Sweet Lane 30 days to demolish the structures and the camper.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-18 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to reject the bid 

offered by Breaux’s Backhoe in the amount of $12,500.00 to abate the asbestos, demolish the 

structure, remove all tall grass, heavy brush and fallen trees and clean and level the lot at 805 S. 

Guegnon Street because it was too high and to authorize a rebid.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-19 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the quote 

in the amount of $11,000.00 to repair the piling of the bridge on South Hollingsworth.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Chris Gautreaux discussed the planned boil water advisory that will be needed because a fire 

hydrant will be replaced by Ray Chevrolet along Highway 167 on Saturday.  He discussed the work 

the crews have been working on. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White discussed the most recent Town Hall Meeting that was held and announced 

another one is planned for March 14, 2023.  She also provided an update of the planned activities 

happening soon in the Downtown area. 

 

11



Police Chief Mike Hardy announced that they are working on the shooting that occurred on the 

Bypass recently. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

12



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

March 7, 2023 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on March 7, 2023 

at 5:15 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

 Broussard, Jr., and Tony Hardy 

 

Members Absent: Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Stewart Head, Electric Department Superintendent 

 Charlene Becket, Main Street Manager 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

 Steve Moosa, CPA 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer  
  

Mayor White stated that we are here for a Finance Committee meeting chaired by Councilman 

Francis Touchet, Jr.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  

There were none.  Since Councilman Touchet was absent, Mayor White asked Mr. Steve Moosa 

to provide the update of the budget and revenues after the 4th quarter of 2022. 

 

Mr. Moosa provided the update of the final numbers of the budget of 2022.  He reported that all 

revenues were positive and most expenses were either flat or below the budget.  The budget was 

not close to being 5% above or below what was projected. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

13



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on March 21, 2023 

at 5:20 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

 Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy 

 

Members Absent: None 

 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Stewart Head, Electric Department Superintendent 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

  
  

Mayor White stated that we are here for a Finance Committee meeting chaired by Councilman 

Tony Hardy.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  There 

were none.  She turned the floor over to Councilman Hardy.  He announced that the agenda item 

was to discuss a proposed ordinance to change the curfew for those under the age of 18.  

Councilman Touchet had put this on the agenda so he asked Councilman Touchet to discuss the 

item. 

 

Councilman Touchet discussed in length the changes he was proposing to the existing ordinance.  

He proposed to change the curfew to those under the age of 18 instead of 17. He also proposed 

to change the curfew time on Sunday through Thursday from 10:00 PM to 5:00 AM to 8:30 PM 

to 5:00 AM and Friday through Saturday from 12:00 AM to 5:00 AM to 10:00 PM to 5:00 AM.  

He wanted to impose financial penalties to the parents of not less than $50.00 for the first offense, 

not less than $75.00 for the second offense and not less than $100.00 for the third offense.  After 

discussion it was also decided that the judge could also give community service in lieu of some 

of the financial fines.   Mayor White proposed that the child would have to be accompanied by a 

parent, guardian or someone having legal custody of the juvenile after curfew, not just another 

adult.  All other exceptions for school events and activities as noted in the existing ordinance 

would remain the same. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to recommend to 

the City Council at their next regular meeting scheduled for April 4, 2023, to adopt an ordinance 

to implement the proposed changes as discussed to the curfew ordinance. The motion 

unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

14



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on March 21, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., 
    Terry Broussard, Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Stewart Head, Electrical Department Superintendent 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

  Kim Touchet, Engineer 

  Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

 Charles Dill, Abbeville Planning Commission 

  Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

  Levar Greenhouse, AT&T 

  Brac Salyers, Louisiana Wildlife & Fisheries 

   Victoria Bourque, VEDA 

  Talitha Boudreaux, Teen Court 

  Chris Groh, Kutchins & Groh 

     

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  She then asked Councilman 

Brady Broussard, Jr. to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked Councilman 

Francis Touchet, Jr. to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to amend 

the agenda to add a discussion of grass cutting contracts as new business item number 12.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

Chief Hardy stated that item number one under personnel to ratify the appointment of personnel 

to the Abbeville Police Department was not needed because the applicant had also applied 

somewhere else and was pursuing that position. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. that 

whenever an unclassified position is due an increase in pay which is to be approved by the City 

Council, that the City Council is furnished with an earnings report of other employees in the City 

and a report after contacting at least three similarly sized municipalities for a salary survey of 

that position, prior to action.  Additionally, the duties of the unclassified employee will also be 

considered.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

15



Presentations 

 

• Mr. Levar Greenhous with AT&T discussed the planned expansion of services in Abbeville.  

He also exchanged contact information with Chris Gautreaux for any problems that need 

to be taken care of within the City. 

 

• Mr. Brac Salyers of Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries discussed the recent addition of fish to 

the pond at LaFitte Drive-In Park.  Mayor White asked him to contact her office to discuss 

the upcoming renovations to the park. 

 

• Representative Jonathan Goudeau was on the agenda but was unable to make the 

meeting.  He will reschedule for the next meeting. 

 

• Ms. Victoria Bourque provided an update on VEDA. 

 

• Ms. Talitha Boudeaux who is the director of Teen Court began the Abbeville program in 

December 2022.  She is requesting funding from the City.  Mayor White asked her to 

present a proposed budget proposal. 

 

• Mr. Chris Groh, with Kutchins and Groh, provided an update on the recent airport analysis 

and planning.  Some items will need to be updated.  He also discussed the recent appraisal 

of the airport done by Mr. Derouen.  He will be looking at the airport layout soon. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the budget 

to actual report for the month of February 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to enter into a public 

hearing to receive comments from the public pertaining to an ordinance to amend Section 2-21 

to increase the annual salary of the Chief of Police from $65,000.00 to $85,000.00.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 

 

Councilwoman Broussard stated that she would feel better about the salary going from 

$65,000.00 to $75,000.00 instead.  Would still put Chief Hardy above the highest paid lieutenant 

in his department.  Councilman Touchet stated that he was planning for the future.  Mayor White 

agreed the $75,000.00 is adequate since Abbeville is not growing like Youngsville and Broussard. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to reconvene the 

regular meeting from public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/Campbell 

Ordinance 23-05 

 

An ordinance to amend Section 2-21 to increase the annual salary of the Chief of Police from 

$65,000.00 to $85,000.00. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(Campbell, B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 NAYS:  1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSENT: 0 

16



 ABSTAIN: 1(Hardy) 

Therefore, the ordinance was approved. 

 

-06 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to condemn the 

burnt house located at 810 South Young Street and to authorize demolition.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to grant the 

property owner of 1109 S. Shireview Circle 14 days to bring the property into compliance and 

then to order a reinspection of the property.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve a special 

event permit for the Junior Auxiliary of Abbeville to hold an Easter egg hunt at Magdalen Square 

on April 8, 2023 from 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM pending receipt of proof of $2 million insurance 

coverage and payment of the permit fee.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

special event permit for the Shuga Shack Trail ride to be held at 2901 Rodeo Road (Red Barn) on 

April 22, 2023 through April 23, 2023 pending receipt of proof of $2 million insurance coverage 

and payment of the permit fee.  The permit is only needed for Sunday, April 23, 2023 when the 

trail ride will be leaving the Red Barn and going on North Airport Road and then to return onto 

Rodeo Road.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to accept the 

recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting held on March 14, 2023 to 

approve the building permit for the shell only for Starbucks.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize 

the Mayor to execute a memorandum of understanding with Harvesttime Christian Academy to 

waive field usage fees for the baseball fields at A. A. Comeaux Park.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The City Attorney provided an overview of the blighted property ordinances as requested by 

Councilman Touchet.  He discussed the steps involved to get a property deemed condemned and 

the authority the Council has at their discretion for dilapidated properties and those properties 

with repeat calls for gun violence, drugs and other crimes.  Each can be done on a case-by-case 

basis. 

 

-12 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

quote in the amount of $11,225.00 from Capital Electric & Supply, LLC to replace the air 

compressor at the Water Treatment Plant.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Campbell/T. Broussard 

Resolution R23-07 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute all necessary documents to lease-purchase a used 

street sweeper. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet discussed the current grass cutting contracts and requested the City Attorney 

17



and the Mayor review those since they are expired. 

 

Kim Touchet stated that the S. Hollingsworth bridge repair will begin in mid-April. 

 

Chris Gautreaux provided an update of what his crews are working on. 

 

Byron Dozier discussed the upcoming events at Comeaux Park. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. discussed the upcoming events in Downtown Abbeville. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



Kaptel
110 North Irving Avenue, Kaplan, LA 70548

337-740-3636

Commercial Services Agreement

Kaptel Account Rep:

Phone Number:

Email:

Customer Information Authorized Customer Representative Information

Legal Company Name: Full Name:

Street Address: Billing Telephone: 337-893-8550

City/State/Zip: Fax:

Billing Address: Contact Number: 337-893-8550

City/State/Zip: Email:

Kaptel Account #:

Product & Service Description - A.A. Comeaux Park WiFi, Content Filtering & Security Total Monthly Purchase Price

Kaptel Totals:

Product & Service Description - Internet Access Service Total Monthly Purchase Price

Other Provider Totals:

GRAND TOTAL

Special Conditions:

Customer Authorized Signature Louisiana Competitive Telecommunications, Inc. D/B/A Kaptel

Carl A. Turnley

337-652-7222

cturnley@kaptel.net

City of Abbeville City of Abbeville

101 N STATE ST

ABBEVILLE, LA 70510

101 N STATE ST

ABBEVILLE, LA 70510

335003679

 7 - GigaPro Hardened WiFi System, Triband WiFi 6E 2x2, 2.5GE Wan, 2.5GE LAN, 802.3bt PoE, AFC License 
$5,400.00

Job & Installation Labor + Training on ProtectIQ/ExperienceIQ $1,060.00

ProtectIQ & ExperienceIQ - 
$70.00

$70.00 $6,460.00

Cox Internet CFI 100M x 100M $280.00 $200.00

$280.00 $200.00

$350.00 $6,660.00

Signature: Signature:

Print: Print:

Title Position: Title Position:

Date: Date:

info@cityofabbeville.net

(includes
pole/wall mounts, 4 year extended warranty)

ProtectIQ helps you keep a lock on your network – and alerts you when any unwanted visitors
try to enter. ExperienceIQ allow customers to manage screen time, content filtering and access.

The service and equipment charges above, except as explicitly set forth in the Special Conditions section, do not include applicable taxes, fees, assessments or surcharges which are additional and may change.

Internet will be supplied & billed by Cox Communications - subject to 5 year agreement - pricing subject to change

City of Abbeville will supply power and wiring to locations.

Kaptel Installation & Setup does not include rewiring.  Any rewiring will be billed at standard rates.

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70


	Top
	1.	Code Enforcement Officer
	Code Enforcer

	2.	Police Department personnel
	1.	Representative Jonathan Goudeau
	2.	Officer Jeremy Deville
	St. Jude Fundraiser Council Packet

	1.	Minutes
	February 27, 2023 special meeting
	March 7, 2023 regular meeting
	March 7, 2023 Committee meeting
	March 21, 2023 Committee meeting
	March 21, 2023 regular meeting

	1.	Discussion hardening schools
	2.	Public hearing curfew ordinance
	Curfew ordinance

	3.	Curfew ordinance
	Curfew ordinance

	4.	Recreation center rental
	5.	B&B daiquiri agreement of understanding
	Agreement of understanding-benoit and Bengtson

	6.	Eaton Drive from Sylvester to Regina street overlay
	7.	Sewer plant pump
	8.	LCDBG pay #6
	9162-04 PPE#6 - Partial Execution

	9.	Resolution CDBG
	CDBG resolution week

	10.	Repair Unit 602
	Versalift quote Unit 602

	11.	Wifi Comeaux Park
	CityofAbbWifiFeb2023Proposal

	12.	509 S. Young Street
	509 S Young Street

	13.	909 S Lyman
	909 S Lyman

	14.	1841 Graceland
	1841 Graceland master tract

	15.	1106 Vernon Street
	1106 Vernon Street

	1.	No old business
	Bottom

